Research Advisory Committee on Gulf War Veterans’ Illnesses

October 27-28, 2003 Committee Meeting Minutes

U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
811 Vermont Ave, Room 819
Washington, D.C.




RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 2 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

DEPARTMENT of VETERANS AFFAIRS

Research Advisory Committee on Gulf War Veterans’ Illnesses
VA Eastern Kansas Healthcare System (T-GW)
2200 S.W. Gage Blvd. Topeka, KS 66622

I hereby certify the following minutes as being an accurate record of what transpired at the October 27-
28, 2003, meeting of the Research Advisory Committee on Gulf War Veterans’ Illnesses.

/signed/

James H. Binns,

Chairman

Research Advisory Committee on Gulf War Veterans’ Illnesses



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 3 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Table of Contents

Tabhle Of CONEENLS cuueeveeiruiniiniinnsnnisninsinsnnsnessaesssessassssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssasssane 3
Attendance Record 5
MEEtiNG AGEIMAA ..ccoueeriinseiiseicsuncsannssenssecssaesssecsseesseessassssessssssssssseessasssasssasssassssesssasssasssasssasssssssassssessassssassaes 6
Welcome, introductions, opening remarks . .. 10
Birth Defects and Pregnancy Outcomes Following Service in the Gulf War e 10
Information From A Registry of Birth Defects in Children of Gulf War Veterans . 11
Findings on Birth Defects from the National Survey of Gulf War Veterans 12
Update on Published Research . . . 13

NTE and Identification of Possible Molecular Targets of Neurotoxic Exposures in Gulf War
B ) ) 1 14

Neurotoxins and Gulf War Illness: An Overview of VA’s Research Enhancement Award Program

(REAP) cititicintntnstnssississstssaessssssssssssisssiessessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnes 15
Update on VA Gulf War Illness Research Programs 15
VA Study of AChE-R in Gulf War Veterans .... 16
Public Comment — DAY 1 ....ccciviciireicnsnissnisssencssssissssssssanesssssossassssssssssssossassssssssssassssasssssassssasssssssse 17

Department of Defense (DOD) Research on Gulf War Veterans’ Illnesses and Chemical Defense.. 18

Additional Findings from the VA ALS Study and Update on the ALS Registry 19
Monitoring the Health of Gulf War Veterans Using Existing VBA Data Systems 20
Monitoring the Health of Gulf War Veterans Using VHA Data and Information Resources........... 20
Anthrax Vaccinations and Health Outcomes in the National Survey of Gulf War Veterans............ 21
Federal Trials of the Anthrax VacCine........ueeeeeiinveinserinsennsencssnnissnencsnncsssessssescssssessssssssssessssesssesse 21
CommMittee BUSINESS cc.uuccveireiiriiiieiniiiiinsniisuiisisstcsseisssnsssecssesssesssssssssssssssssssesssessesssssssssssssssssss 22
Public Comment — DAY 2 .....ccoviereeicssensssnnesssrosssnsssassssssrssssssssssssssassssassssssssssasssssssssssssssasssssassssassssssssssassss 24
APPEINAIX coueiiniireissenssrensaecssecssecsensssnsssesssesssnsssesssasssassssssssesssasssassssssssssssssssssssassssessasssasssassssess 25

Presentation 1- Maria AVARNETA ..................c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt 25

Presentation 2 — Betty MEKAECI .................ccc.ocoviiiiiiiiieeiie ettt e ens 36

Presentation 3 — HAN KANG............cccooooiiiiiieeie ettt ettt ettt e et esntee e saeeenneeens 43



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes

Page 4 of 116

October 27-28, 2003

Presentation 4 — Lea StEELe............cuociaciiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt bbbt 47
Presentation 5 — Carrolee Barlow..............cc..cccoccioiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 50
Presentation 6 — Wilkie WilSOM...........c.cccuiiii ittt ettt ettt et 59
Presentation 7 — Neld@ WEAY .........c..ocvoeieiiiiii ettt ettt e ssbesseesaensaens 65
Presentation 8 — Heremona Soreq and Steven BerkOWILz..............ccccoeciioiioiniiiiiioiiiiiieeiieee e 72
Presentation 9 — Michael KilDAtVIiCk...............ccccccoviieiiiiiiiiieiii ettt 78
Presentation 10 — RODErt SRETIAAN .................cccccciooiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 84
Presentation 11 — EUENe OAAONE...................c.cccoeeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeieee ettt ese e 87
Presentation 12 — SUSAR PEFEZ.............ccc.coouiiii ittt ettt ettt 93
Presentation 13 — DeniS@ HYMES ..........ccc.cccueeeiueiiieie e eeeie et eeiee et e etae ettt e steeeetaeesbeeastaeesaseessseesnseeens 99
Presentation 14 — Clare MARAN.................cc..ccooevieiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 107

Presentation 15 — Jack MEIIING .............ccooouiiiiiiiii ettt 111



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 5 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Attendance Record

Members of the Committee
James H. Binns, Chairman
Nicola Cherry

Beatrice Golomb

Joel Graves

Robert W. Haley
Marguerite Knox

William J. Meggs

Pierre J. Pellier

Steve Robinson

Steve Smithson

Lea Steele

Consultant to the Committee
Jack Melling

Guest Speakers
Maria Araneta
Betty Mekdeci
Han Kang
Carrolee Barlow
Wilkie Wilson
Nelda Wray
Hermona Soreq
Steven Berkowitz
Michael Kilpatrick
Robert Sheridan
Eugene Oddone
Susan Perez
Denise Hynes
Clare Mahan



9[091S ©OT I

3uey] uey 1q

109PYOIN Anog ‘SN

ejouery Addey "1q

suurg wif TN

€00 ‘87-LT 1990100

911 Jo 9 93eq

youny
Y2183sdY paysIqng uo jepdn
uoIsSNISI(|

‘Sun.1232 4 Jin Aq pajioda. $102fap y3.41q JO UOIDLOGO.LLOD PA0I2.4 [DIIPIUL SUIPN]OUT ‘SUDADID A DA

JInD Jo doaung [puonvN S, A wodf $102f2p y341q U0 S)Nsa.L Mau juasa.d jjim afy ") (q ‘U0ISULYSDA Ul L23ud)) Apnig
ssaup)] puv Lanfu] pajpay-1v g ay] puv wn.430.4J A30jo1uapids] [DJUDWUOAIAUT S, A O 40J02.41(] S1 SUDY “A(]
SUBIIN A JEAA JIND) JO AJAING [BUONRN IY) WO.LJ $)IJI( YIIg uo sgurpury

yvaLg

"SUp.A23o4

AD M JIND) JO uapJ1yd U1 2uioApuds uvyuapjon) Jo dpnis aayp.1odoos v wo.f uonyvurioful Livutuiijo.ad so jjom sp
‘14751304 oY) W04 DIDP JU2S2Ad J]IN 2YS “SIO2[OP YIA1q YIIM SUDLDIIA D JIND) JO U24p]1yd O A415132.4 D SUIDIUIDIM
DY) UOYDZIUDS.A0 JIfOL1d-U0U D UDUPJIY)) L0f YO4DISY SIOfI(T Y3 A1g JO 4010241 dAIINIIXT ST 109PYIIN "SI
SUBIIIA JBAN JIND) JO UIP[IYD) UI §)I9J3(] YIIIg JO A1SISNY & Woa ] uoneuLIoyuy

"A3ojo1uiapidy Jo S[pUUy 0 ansst ‘OO¢ ‘“1oquiaaoN ayj u1 paysignd aq o}

. SUDADID 4 UDWIO O YSIY Y] AV JInD uvisiod ayp Surin Ouvudaid pub uondoouo)), Apnis 42y wioif sjnsaa
oY1 0 asvaja. Js.41f dy3 apnjoul jIm UONDIUISIAA ABE] “SUDADIEA AV fiND) JO uaApJ1yo Ul $193f2p Y1.11q U0 SIIPNIs
A2Y wof uoypuLioful Juasaad jjim ‘0321 UvS v PILLOfiIv)) O AJ1S4241U1) Y] IV LOSS2JOL] JUDISISSY ‘DIQUDLY “A(]
JBAA JIND) 9Y) UI IJIAIIS SUIMO[[0 SIW0IIN() AduBuGaIJ pue $)IJd( Yrug

syJewd.a Suruado pue ‘SUOINPOIIUT “QUIOI[IAN

€002 ‘LT 199012 ‘ARpuUoIA

EPUIsy SUNIOJA

somurjAl SUBSIN [AMD-OV Y

00-1-00-C1
00-C1-S¥-11
SY-1I1-CI-T1

SI-TT—0¢-01
0€-:01 —SI1-01

SI-0I —0¢-6

0€:6 —S¥-8
Y-8 —0¢-8



03eOU0)) UYo[ "I
baiog ruowIoy "1

Keipy BpION I

UOSTIA SB[TM 1A

morreq d9[o11e) "Iq

€00 ‘87-LT 1990100

911 Jo [ 98eq

Avp ayy 40f uinolpy

JuWWo)) dqndg

‘Ajppuriouqu s1yp Sunva.l ul 2a11924J2 2q Avw Jpy3 JUUIIDALY [2A0U D padojanap

soy L10ip.40qD] S, ba.10S A 4D JinD) 2y SULINP P2.42JUN0IUD dSOY] SV YONS SIPIIUdYD SUNIqIyul-gJy )y

0} §2.n50dX2 YJIM PAIVIDOSSD 2G 0] SIIPNIS SNO1A2Ad Ul UMOYS ‘(Y-TYD V) 25D.12150U1j0YdA1201 2WidzU> 21 JO WLIOf
JuvInui v 0 S]a42] Y31y 2ADY SUDLDIIA AV Y JIND) []1 J2YJOYM dUIULIDIOP 0F APNIS YA b Jo Synsa. [p11ul juasaad Jjim
VA U2ADE] 38240 2y1 0 A3ojotuapidy fo fo1y7) ‘0IwIU0)) A pUv ‘WaJVSNLL Ul A18.4241U7) MLGIE] JO ‘Da.40g “A(]
SUBINIA TBA JIND Ul Y-AUDV JO APMIS VA

A 02810UDL] UDS Y] wo.4f 192(04d joq1d ssaugpr vy finD ay) pun

ADJUD]) 224M0SIY SULSDUIIOANIN S, ¥ 4 40f supjd uo uoyvuLioful juasaid osjp jjim ays “sa1pnis yipay juaudojdop
papunf A1juasa.4 uo 2211ULI0D Y] IVpdn Jjim pup U201ff() JudUdO]2AI(] PUD YI.1DISIY [o1Y) S, ¥ A ST ADAM AT
SWEIS0.1 YI.1BISIY SSAU[[] JeA\ JIND VA uo dgepdn

yvaLg

"SUOIJUIALDJUT JUDULIDAA] AOf S]DBAD] ADJNOD]OUL SD []oM SD ‘SJpnplaipul pasodxa Afijuapi 1oy} S42340ul01q

Afuap1 03 jpnuajod ayj SVY Yo4DISa4 S1Y [ “SUIXOJOINdU 0] 24nsodxa Suinmojjof sapdws jpuntuv puv juayvd

u1 passa.dxa su1210.4d aunuDxa JJIN YOIYM WDAS0AJ SSPUJIT AD A JIND) PUD SUIXOJOANIN S, ¥4 JO Y10M Y] 2GLIDSIP
1m ‘Auisaaarun) ayn(g v A30joovuLIbyJ Jo 105S2f04d PUD ISUIOS 4224D)) YIADISIY A01UDS ¥4 ‘UOSIIY AT
(dVAY) Wweidoad PIeMy JUIWDURYUY YIIBISIY S, VA JO MIAIIAQ UY :SSAUJ[[ J1BAA JIND) PUB SUIX0JO.ININ

YODIID [DI1UIYD LADIIJIU AO ]S140.449] d41INY

Jo yS1L v S42Yy30 pup Sun.21oA AV Y JIND) 11 Y10q 0 Jifouaq [pyuarod o spuUIIDaLY L0f S1234D) AfIjUdpl 03 Y4054
o1uouas Lof [pyuajod ay) dUIINO J]IM MOJIDG A "SUDWNY UO SIPITUDYD 25aY] JO §102[fo oy Jo Sulpuvisiopun
Ano 1of suoyvo1pdutl punofoad aavy Avw yo.uvasa4 S1y ] A1qpiiva 211ouad [N Jo 2]0.4 ayj Suipnjoul

(HAIN) 2sv.12152 123411 Ayivdo.inou uo sapionsad agpydsoydoun3.io Jo S102[J2 2y paip.aisuowap vyl ainjiIsuy

YPS 1D SaN3IDAJJ0d YIIM PIIONPUOD YAOM JUIS2Ad [JIN ‘SI1LOIDLOGDTT YIADISIY YOI YIIN AJJUdLIND ‘NOJIDG “A(]
SUBIII A JBAA JINO) Ul S3INSodX 7 31X0)0.1n3N JO $193aR ], JB[NII[OJA I[qISSOJ JO UONBIYNUIP] pue LN

somurjAl SUBSIN [AMD-OV Y

00:-¢
00-S-0¢-¥
0¢-y —S¥-C
SY-C-0¢-¢
0€:C—Sh-1
Sy-1—-00-1



SQUAH ostua(q "I

7319 uesn§ "S]A

ouoppQ 2uadng "I1q

Yoryed(ry [9RYIIN "I

€00C ‘8T-LT 1990100
911 Jo 8 93eq

young

uorssSmIsI(q ‘v0O

"24DD [DI1UI]D PUD YIDIY , SUDL2IIA

Jino 1og1uout o] pasn aq y3rut Ay) Moy pun ‘UOHDLSTUIUPY YIDIE] SUDAD]I2, S, F 4 1D 2]qQD]IDAD S2D.N0S2.L
pUp $aspGLIDP Y] UO UOYDULIOfU JUSAd []IM PUD “UdJUD)) 2IANOSIY UOYDULIOMUT A4 Y] SIO241p SIULET AT
$32.N0SIY UONBULIOJU] PUE BJe(] VHA SUIS() SUBIIIIA JBA\ JINO JO YI[BIH 3Y) SULIOIIUOA]

"SUDADJ2A AV Y] JfiND) O Y3 pay 2y 4071UOUW O pasn aq Y31 Lay] MOY pUv S22.N0S.4

DIDP SWD]O SIYouUsq U0 UOYDULIOfUL JUdSDAd [JIM DY “UOUDLSTUIUPY SIIfoudg SUp.121a S, ¥ A 10 AJ1i3a3uf
pup SISAppuy 2ouvuLiofiaq Jo 201fJ0) Yy} I $201442S UODULIOJUT PUD DID(J LOf 10J0241(] JUDISISSY S1 Zo4dd "SI
SWIRISAG BB VIA SunsIxy Suis() SUBIIIA IBAA JIND JO YI[BIH dY) SULIOJIUOIA

yvaLg

"A138132Y STV S. FA UO 22131141100 Y] 2jpdn

[ pup ‘Apnys 1oy) wo.f sasdjpup fo s)nsaL pajiniap a40ul Juasaad JjIn ‘SUDL2a 4 A JinD ui Ty Jo Apnis s, ¥4
Jo 101p3ysaauy ajdioutig puv ‘A1842411p) dYN( I0 AJU3)) YOUDISIY SIIALS YIDIL] dY] JO 4010241 dUOPPO A
Ans13ay STV 33 uo depdn pue Apny§ STV VA Y} wioay s3uipury [euonippy

"2SUJ2P [DI1UDYD [DI1PaUL 0] SUID]D.L YI4DISAA (JO(J JO M1A4.4240
up puv yway jududojdap puv sassaujjl Ay Jino uo yo.uvasa. s, JOJ U0 uoyDuLIoful juasaad Jjim yo1gvdiry A
ISUIJI( [BITWAYD) PUB SISSIU[[] SUBIIIIA JBAN JIND UO [IABISIY SUIJI( Jo yudunpredaq

€007 ‘87 190320 ‘Aepsan],

somurjAl SUBSIN [AMD-OV Y

SI-1—-6§I°¢cl
SI:CL —Sy-11
Sy-11—SI-T1
SI-TT —Sy-01
SY-01-0¢-01
0¢€-01T —Sv-6

SY:6 —0¢-8



utnolpy

Juwwo)) dAqng
suutg wif "IN ssouIsng 39 1wWwWo))
SureIN Yoer Iq JUIIBA XEIYIUY Y} JO S[RLLL, [BIIPI]

Juauidojdap vy finn yiim UoupIdOSSY Ul SUIDIVA XDAYIUD dY) PIAII2L dADY O]
UMOUY SUDADIIA JO ANOL3GNS D UO SUDA2JIA AD A JIND) JO A2AUNG [PUOYDN S, ¥4 WO.LL S)nsa.L juasaad jjim Suvy A
Suey] uey Iq SUBIII A JBA\ JIND) JO AJAING [BUONBN ) Ul SSW0IINQ YI[BIH PUE SUOHBUIIEA XBIYIUY

£00T ‘87-LT 1090300
91130 6 °3ed
somurjAl SUBSIN [AMD-OV Y

00-%
007 —0¢-€
0¢-€ —00:¢
00:C—Sh-1
Sy1—-6I-1



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 10 0of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Welcome, introductions, opening remarks
Mr. James H. Binns, Jr., Chairman

Chairman James Binns called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. He welcomed the participants and
attendees.

Birth Defects and Pregnancy Outcomes Following Service in the Gulf War
Maria Rosario (Happy) G. Araneta, PhD
Assistant Professor, University of California at San Diego

Chairman Binns introduced the first presenter, Dr. Maria Rosario Araneta, to speak on her studies of birth
defects and pregnancy outcomes following service in the Gulf War. (See Appendix — See Presentation 1.)
Her presentation included the first release of the results from her study “Conception and Pregnancy
During the Persian Gulf War: The Risk to Women Veterans” to be published in the November, 2003,
issue of Annals of Epidemiology. A discussion took place following Dr. Areneta’s presentation.

Dr. Golomb inquired about research showing problems that may not become apparent until children are
older, including such concerns as behavioral problems. Dr. Araneta indicated that her studies had not
been able to capture these problems given limitations associated with birth certificate data. She indicated
that this type of problem had been recognized by CDC, which has considered monitoring possible birth-
related problems though age six.

Dr. Haley complimented Dr. Araneta on the contributions of her studies. He asked if the study had
compared birth defect rates in civilian versus military hospitals, since those who were ill might have left
the service earlier. Dr. Araneta responded that the anonymous nature of birth defect registries prevented
an ability to differentiate between births in military versus civilian hospitals.

Dr. Steele asked if rates of birth defects among female and male parents might be evaluated together
rather than separately, as reported in Dr. Araneta’s data. Dr Araneta replied that when rates in males and
females were combined, three types of heart-related birth defects were significantly elevated.

Dr. Cherry noted that the rate of all birth defects combined was similar in the two groups. Dr. Araneta
noted that overall birth defect rates in the U.S. had been fairly consistent over the last 20 years but that
important discoveries about risk factors for birth defects requires that different types of birth defects be
evaluated individually.

Dr. Golomb observed that separating the results for veterans who consider themselves ill would be useful
to see if rates differed in ill vs. healthy veterans.

Mr. Graves suggested that future studies should consider differences in characteristics and locations of
deployment.

Mr. Binns asked Dr. Araneta what future studies she would recommend. Dr. Araneta replied that she
would recommend case control studies to evaluate these abnormalities and that future studies should also
incorporate information related to exposures.

Mr. Binns asked what physicians should tell Gulf War veterans who may have concerns about having
children. Dr. Araneta advised that veterans should be counseled to speak with their physicians and to take



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 11 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

folic acid three months prior to conception, as is recommended for any prospective parent with possible
exposure risk.

Dr. Steele asked if Dr. Araneta had determined whether rates of birth defects had differed in different
years following the war. Dr. Araneta replied that they had not looked at that.

Information From A Registry of Birth Defects in Children of Gulf War Veterans
Ms. Betty Mekdeci
Executive Director, Birth Defects Research for Children

Mr. Binns introduced the next speaker, Ms. Betty Mekdeci, Executive Director of Birth Defects Research
for Children, a non-profit organization that maintains a registry of children of Gulf War veterans with
birth defects. She presented data from the registry, as well as preliminary information from a cooperative
study of Goldenhar Syndrome in children of Gulf War veterans. (See Appendix — Presentation 2.)

Following the presentation, Mr. Smithson asked how many of the veterans who are fathers of children
within the birth defect registry are ill themselves. Ms. Mekdeci replied that she hasn’t analyzed that yet,
but the data were included in their questionnaire, and she will do it.

In response to a methodology suggestion, Ms. Mekdeci reiterated that the purpose of the registry is not
the same as that of a research study.

Dr. Steele asked whether the questionnaire asked about exposures in theater. Ms. Mekdeci responded
yes, but that many veterans don’t know for certain what they were exposed to. Mr. Smithson wondered
whether the questionnaire asked about veterans’ locations in theater. Ms. Mekdeci said it did not, but that
this information could be obtained in follow-up efforts.

Dr. Steele asked what denominators were used to estimate crude rates. Ms. Mekdeci replied that the
information was obtained from Dr. Araneta’s study.

Dr. Pellier asked if it is correct that Ms. Mekdeci had data on 40,000 families. Ms. Mekdeci clarified that
information was available on 3,437 veterans’ families. Dr. Pellier observed that, in the pharmaceutical
industry when looking at the adverse effects of a drug, the comparison is done in relation to the overall
population. He indicated that approach might be applied to the birth defect registry by comparing Gulf
War veterans to the entire registry population, including Gulf War veterans. Ms. Mekdeci said that she
would be interested to read references on this approach.

Dr. Cherry asked to what extent the cases in the registry included cases identified in Dr. Araneta’s studies.
Dr. Araneta replied that there were five in the Gulf War group and two in the nondeployed group.

Mr. Binns asked if Ms. Mekdeci planned to evaluate whether ill veterans are more likely to have children
with birth defects than well veterans. Ms. Mekdeci said she could do that. Mr. Binns asked what
research Ms. Mekdeci would recommend. Ms. Mekdeci emphasized the need to identify and assist
families of female veterans who have children with birth defects.

The meeting adjourned for a brief break.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 12 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Findings on Birth Defects from the National Survey of Gulf War Veterans
Dr. Han Kang, MD, PhD
Director, VA Environmental Epidemiology Program/War-Related Injury and Illness Study Center
Washington, D.C.

Mr. Binns introduced Dr. Han Kang to present findings on birth defects from the National Survey of Gulf
War Veterans that included recent results of medical record reviews done to determine the accuracy of
veteran-reported birth defects in the study. (See Appendix — Presentation 3.)

After his presentation, Dr. Golomb observed that birth defect risks related to some exposures might
increase over time, so it would be useful to do a similar data collection at a more recent point in time.

Dr. Haley complimented Dr. Kang for another great contribution to the literature. It was important to
note that the veterans’ self-reports appeared to be supported, and it would also be important to evaluate
details related to the 17 that were not confirmed.

Mr. Robinson said he appreciated that self-reported surveys of veterans had been validated. He said he is
receiving a large number of self-reports of veterans with multiple sclerosis. He also indicated that a
recently released study implied that media perceptions affect self-reports.

Dr. Cherry noted that the only Achilles heel of the study would be if nondeployed veterans had higher
rates of problems that had not been followed up. Were more self-reports not followed up in non-Gulf
veterans? Dr. Kang replied that 33% of conditions were not followed up in non-Gulf and 40% of
conditions were not followed-up in Gulf War veterans.

Dr. Araneta said that a military birth defects registry had been established in 1998 that was based on ICD-
9 codes on birth certificates from military hospitals and births in civilian hospitals that had been paid for
by the military. She indicated that this is a passive birth defect surveillance system, which typically
underestimates birth defect rates by about 40%.

Dr. Kang said that the rate of birth defects in the nondeployed population in his study was similar to that
found in the general population, suggesting that there had not been a problem of under-reporting in this

group.
Ms. Mekdeci suggested asking parents for help in getting medical records.

Mr. Binns asked what future research Dr. Kang would recommend. Dr. Kang noted that the birth
numbers were so small from Phase III of the National Gulf War Veterans Health Study that it was not
possible to draw conclusions related to birth defect rates. To settle the issue, the study would have to
have a considerably larger sample size, but that would be very expensive.

Mr. Binns asked if Dr. Kang has data to know whether the Gulf War veteran parents in his study were
well or ill, and if it appeared that rates of birth defects had changed over time. Dr. Kang indicated that
data collected for his study would allow them to look at both questions.

Dr. Haley suggested that selection bias might be reduced by looking at birth defects among all children in
the family, not only the ones born first since the war. He also encouraged Dr. Kang to provide
information on the total number of births in his cohort to other researchers who wish to study this
problem. Dr. Kang thanked him for these suggestions.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 13 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Dr. Steele reviewed the recommendations regarding birth defects from the Draft Executive Summary of
the Committee’s upcoming report. Mr. Robinson suggested recommending active surveillance for birth
defects to the military and noted that there are unspent funds available at DOD for future deployment
health research. Dr. Araneta recommended that the State of California be allowed access to military
hospital records. Dr. Steele asked about the nature of California’s birth defect surveillance program. Dr.
Araneta replied that it is a uniform system based on CDC codes.

Ms. Knox said that there should be a pamphlet to advise veterans who are considering having families
about birth defects research.

Dr. Barlow asked if the Committee has authority to recommend better classification of birth defects.

Dr. Araneta said that there should be pregnancy-testing requirements prior to deployment. Ms. Knox
indicated that those requirements currently are in place.

Dr. Steele noted that there is a very large study in Britain of birth outcomes among U.K. Gulf War
veterans. Dr. Araneta said that the study results would be published in February 2004. Dr. Cherry said
that the study includes all British deployed troops.

Mr. Smithson said that both ill and well veterans are concerned about whether veterans are at greater risk
for having children with birth defects.

Dr. Araneta said that CDC is exploring the use of expanded ICD codes for birth defect surveillance.

Dr. Golomb observed that doctors often have so many requirements that they provide information on birth
defects coding very quickly, resulting in high error rates for birth defects identified on birth certificates.

Ms. Mekdeci said it was important to follow through and look at defects that emerge later in a child’s life.
Dr. Golomb cautioned that more research might change current impressions, just as findings from the

research presented at this meeting differ from what was known two years ago.

Update on Published Research
Dr. Lea Steele, PhD
Scientific Director, RAC-GWVI

Mr. Binns welcomed Dr. Steele in her new dual capacity as scientific director of the Committee staff as
well as Committee member. Dr. Steele presented an update on research published since the last
Committee meeting. (See Appendix — Presentation 4.)

In the discussion that followed, Dr. Haley observed that there were two problems with the Hotopf study.
First, it measured total serum paraoxonase levels, which are the wrong thing to measure. It should have
measured the Q allozyme. Second, the case definition used in the study was far too broad and included
people sick for any reason. This would result in the case group likely including people who are mildly
symptomatic or ill for reasons unrelated to service in the Gulf War.

Regarding the Riddle article in Military Medicine, Mr. Robinson said that Dr. Mark Brown told him this
information had been “state of the art” when this paper was put together several years ago. Dr. Golomb
reviewed the premises cited in the article and showed they were no longer considered accurate. Mr.




RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 14 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Robinson said he had asked Dr. Brown if he planned to publish a retraction, and that he said he would if
asked. Mr. Robinson suggested that the Committee should recommend a retraction. Mr. Graves agreed.
Ms. Knox said that this publication is what military and VA physicians are reading.

Regarding the “Consensus Statement” paper, Dr. Meggs asked whether the authors mentioned that one of
the common threads in many of the scenarios described was exposure to toxic elements. Mr. Robinson
said that his veterans’ organization had been aware of this effort to substantiate the stress theory. He
expected that there would be objective evidence of illness in World Trade Center firefighters, too. Dr.
Golomb agreed and pointed out that firefighting is also associated with toxic exposures.

The meeting adjourned for a lunch break

NTE and Identification of Possible Molecular Targets of Neurotoxic Exposures in Gulf War
Veterans

Dr. Carrolee Barlow, MD, PhD

Director of Molecular Neurosciences, Merck Research Laboratory, San Diego, CA

Mr. Binns introduced the first speaker for the afternoon, Dr. Carrolee Barlow, who presented results of
work conducted with colleagues at Salk Institute that demonstrated that neuropathic target esterase (NTE)
is a target enzyme for organophosphates known to cause adverse neurological effects in humans. (See
Appendix — Presentation 5.) This research may have implications for understanding the effects of these
chemicals on humans and the potential role of genetic variability of this enzyme. Dr. Barlow also
outlined the potential for genetic research to identify targets for developing treatments of potential benefit
to both ill Gulf War veterans and others at risk of future terrorist or military chemical attack. Discussion
followed.

Dr. Golomb asked if NTE is expressed in blood or saliva. Dr. Barlow said it is important to determine
this in humans.

Dr. Soreq noted that AChE activity was also somewhat different in the NTE heterozygotes. Dr. Barlow
thought this might be attributed to the small numbers in the study and thought it might not occur if a
larger number were studied.

Dr. Pellier asked if Dr. Barlow had looked at NTE in the gut. Dr. Barlow said they had not, although they
would be sending the mice to other researchers. Dr. Pellier asked if Dr. Barlow thinks that NTE is
providing some type of maintenance of neurons and wondered if she had any related insights into other
neurodegenerative diseases like Alzheimer’s. Dr. Barlow said her sense is that Parkinson’s may be linked
to NTE.

Dr. Haley asked why the system doesn’t recover when NTE levels are restored. Dr. Soreq stated NTE is a
signaling enzyme.

Mr. Binns asked if Dr. Barlow could explain in layman’s terms how the genetic research approach she
described might lead to treatments. Dr. Barlow explained that once researchers find a gene and
understand what its function is they can then screen pharmaceutical compounds to see what can affect the
gene’s product. She related that the gene for an orphan disease was identified by her group in 1998, and
that they have now reached the point that they have identified a very promising drug compound. This
was the timetable for an orphan disease affecting 1,000 children in the U.S., which is nowhere near the
size of impact potentially associated with a better understanding of NTE.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 15 0f 116
October 27-28, 2003

Neurotoxins and Gulf War Illness: An Overview of VA’s Research Enhancement Award Program
(REAP)

Dr. Wilkie Wilson

VA Senior Research Career Scientist

Professor of Pharmacology, Duke University,

Mr. Binns introduced the next presentation by Dr. Wilkie Wilson providing an overview of VA’s
Research Enhancement Award Program (REAP) on neurotoxins and Gulf War illness. Dr. Wilson
described the work of the VA-funded program, which will examine proteins expressed in patient and
animal samples in relation to neuronal hyperexcitability and exposure to neurotoxins. This research has
the potential to identify biomarkers that identify exposed individuals, as well as molecular targets for
treatment interventions. (See Appendix — Presentation 6.)

Following he presentation, Dr. Golomb reported on a case of overexposure to organophosphates that was
associated with seizures.

Dr. Barlow noted that she asked Dr. Steve Heineman at Salk Institute to look at NTE knockout mice to
see if they were more susceptible to kindling. She also sent mice to Dr. Abou-Donia at Duke.

Mr. Robinson asked whether the PTSD difference mentioned by Dr. Wilson is caused by genetics or other
protective mechanisms.

Dr. Golomb said that studies have shown that exposure to high levels of stress can affect the nervous
system in a way that makes it hyperresponsive to later exposures.

Dr. Wilson observed that it might be beneficial to further study choline as a possible protective compound
against the effects of exposure to acetycholinesterase inhibitors.

Dr. Golomb said it is important to determine if it might be used now to provide benefit to individuals who
have already been injured.

Mr. Robinson commented that Special Forces troops are specially trained in measures to help them deal
with extreme stress.

The meeting adjourned for a brief break.
Update on VA Gulf War Illness Research Programs

Dr. Nelda Wray, MD, MPH
Chief Research & Development Officer, U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs

Mr. Binns introduced the next speaker, Dr. Nelda Wray, VA’s Chief Research and Development Officer
(CRADO), and thanked her for her assistance in arranging for several of the speakers at the meeting.

Dr. Wray briefed the Committee on recently funded deployment health studies. She also presented
information on plans for VA’s Neuroimaging Resource Center and a Gulf War illness pilot project from
the San Francisco VA. (See Appendix — Presentation 7.)




RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 16 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

VA Study of AChE-R in Gulf War Veterans
Dr. Hermona Soreq, Hebrew University, Jerusalem, Israel
Dr. Steven Berkowitz, VA Cooperative Studies Program

Mr. Binns introduced Dr. Hermona Soreq who presented information on and preliminary results from the
VA-sponsored study of acetylcholinesterase and other enzyme levels in Gulf War veterans. (See
Appendix — Presentation 8.) Dr. Soreq’s presentation was followed by a related presentation provided by
Dr. Steven Berkowitz of VA’s Office of Research and Development. The presentations were followed by
discussion with Committee members concerning the study.

Mr. Robinson noted that there are blood samples for 900 veterans of Task Force Ripper, including both
pre and post-Gulf War I samples. located at DOD. Dr. Craig Hyams would be familiar with the current
disposition of these samples.

Dr. Cherry stated that the study design was not necessarily related to exposures in the Gulf War since
someone with anxiety in the non-deployed group should be similar to someone with anxiety in the Gulf

group.

Dr. Meggs asked whether the study was considering other symptoms of Gulf War illness besides anxiety
such as cognitive dysfunction, memory loss, etc. Dr. Berkowitz replied that he was not sure of all the
variables being studied and measures being used. They had measured anxiety with the Spielberger scale.
Dr. Golomb stated that that scale is not useful for anxiety associated with physiological illness.

Mr. Binns asked if the group of Gulf War veterans whose samples were being studied include those with
pain, cognitive difficulty, and other symptoms other than anxiety. Dr. Berkowitz said yes. All of those
data were collected, including all symptoms endorsed by the veterans.

Mr. Graves commented to Dr. Soreq that when she had last presented information on AChE-R to the
Committee, he believed that her work was on the verge of leading to treatment options for those with
excess levels of AChE-R. He asked about the current status of those efforts. Dr. Soreq responded that
treatments tested for a particular condition must be shown to be relevant to that condition. Dr. Berkowitz
stated that by the end of the study, we will know if AChE and AChE-R levels are related to Gulf War
illness.

Mr. Binns asked if they would have data in February on just anxiety or on the full range of symptoms.
Dr. Berkowitz replied that he would expect to have the full range.

Mr. Graves asked why VA had focused this study on anxiety in the first place. Dr. Berkowitz replied that
Dr. Soreq had previously done work in a U.S. population that showed an association of anxiety with
AChE-R.

Dr. Cherry then asked why the study was not addressing the central hypothesis put forward by Dr. Soreq
and the Committee when the study was recommended. Dr. Berkowitz replied that the hypothesis of the
study was that anxiety may have produced veterans’ symptoms. Dr. Cherry reiterated that that had not
been the hypothesis put forward by the Committee and recommended for study.

Dr. Golomb stated that studies have clearly shown that a relatively small number of ill veterans have
anxiety.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 17 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Dr. Haley observed that the lowa study, from which this group of veterans was drawn, was conducted by
piecing together questions from various studies. As a result, they have reported findings that are very
different from other studies, including a higher estimate of problems with anxiety than has been found in
other studies. The interest of the Committee was that enzyme levels be assessed in the larger group of
veterans who have Gulf War illnesses, but do not have anxiety. Dr. Berkowitz said that these individuals
should be factored out.

Dr. Golomb said that many Committee members were uncomfortable with what Dr. Berkowitz was
saying. In the past, when researchers have found symptoms of psychological difficulties in ill veterans,
the findings were used to say that Gulf War illnesses are the result of stress. The Committee had been
interested in evaluating physiological parameters of Gulf War illness. Dr. Berkowitz said that it is
important to isolate the differences associated with each factor. Dr. Golomb replied that the approach
described by Dr. Berkowitz would not be capable of doing that, since it relies on the assumption that
anxiety caused the physiological symptoms when the physical symptoms could have, in fact, caused
anxiety symptoms experienced by ill veterans. Dr. Steele agreed, indicating that the study design was the
tail wagging the dog and that there was no evidence from previous research indicating that anxiety had
caused all the other symptoms experienced by veterans.

Dr. Barlow said that although she is an outsider, she understands where the Committee’s concern is
coming from. It was important that the populations to be studied be properly defined, and then that the
data be allowed to speak for itself. Dr. Berkowitz replied that even if the premise of the study was
erroneous, the study findings might still provide the justification for a clinical trial.

Dr. Golomb asked Dr. Soreq if she thought that the primary issue of interest for Gulf War illnesses related
to anxiety. Dr. Soreq replied that she thinks that the most prominent link with AChE-R is with
neuromuscular disease.

Dr. Cherry said she thought we were looking at a marker for exposure but that the purpose of the study
had somehow been twisted, changed to a test of anxiety. Dr. Barlow commented that “healthy individuals
with anxiety” was not a tight definition for a population to be studied. Dr. Steele said the Committee had
expected the purpose of this work was to measure whether veterans with Gulf War illness had elevated
AChE-R levels. Dr. Golomb reiterated that anxiety, as a symptom, is present in a very low number of ill
veterans. Dr. Barlow said that because ill Gulf War veterans do not look anything like a group of people
with anxiety disorders, she thought the anxiety aspect of the study should be scrapped.

Dr. Berkowitz replied that as far as he knew, all of the data would be looked at.

Dr. Haley said there needed to be a protocol people agree on.

Dr. Pellier asked if VA and the study leaders would submit an analysis plan to the Committee. Dr.
Berkowitz replied that he would have to discuss that with the research leadership and the principal

investigators. Dr. Cherry asked if the committee could see the current analysis plan tomorrow. Dr.
Berkowitz said he did not have a copy of the analysis plan.

Public Comment — Day 1

Mr. Binns stated that the next agenda item was the public comment period and called on the individuals
who had signed up to provide comments.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 18 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Alison Johnson said that in a study of multiple chemical sensitivity (MCS) in Atlanta, 1.8% of those with
MCS reported having psychiatric symptoms before they developed MCS and 38% reported having
psychiatric symptoms after they developed MCS. She also reported that results of using neurotin for MCS
have been terrible. She indicated that some individuals with MCS had reported good results with its use
early on but had later crashed, and that the drug had been difficult to withdraw from.

Denise Nichols said that, if you talk to the vets, they are still generally being treated as psychiatric
patients in the VA system. It also concerned her that the death rate was still going up. She wondered
how many who died were given psychiatric treatments when they should have been given medications for
their medical problems. She knew, for example, of individuals put on heavy psychiatric medication when
they had chest pains. An ill friend who went with her to a conference and forgot his medications was
much better when he did not take the drugs. She asked to know what doctors are seeing at the specialty
clinics where Gulf veterans are sent. She said she was not asking for a study, just information and
communication.

Mr. Binns thanked the members of the public for their comments.

The meeting adjourned for the day at approximately 5:15 p.m.

The meeting reconvened the following day, October 28, 2003, at 8:30 a.m.

Department of Defense (DOD) Research on Gulf War Veterans’ Illnesses and Chemical Defense
Dr. Michael Kilpatrick, Deputy Director, DOD Deployment Health Support Directorate

Dr. Robert E. Sheridan, U.S. Army Chemical Defense Institute
LTC (Dr.) Brian Lukey, Director, U.S. Army Military Operational Medicine Research Program

Mr. Binns introduced Dr. Michael Kilpatrick. Dr. Kilpatrick presented a briefing on DOD’s medical
research program, including research on Gulf War illnesses and deployment health, and an overview of
DOD research relating to chemical defense. (See Appendix — Presentation 9.) This was followed by a
presentation by Dr. Robert E. Sheridan of the Army Chemical Defense Institute (See Appendix —
Presentation 10.) A discussion followed during which LTC Brian Lukey joined Drs. Kilpatrick and
Sheridan in responding to questions about the DOD programs presented.

Mr. Binns asked LTC Lukey and Dr. Sheridan about funding levels for their programs. He noted that one
of the researchers who presented to the committee the previous day, whose research has been funded by
the Chemical Defense Institute for many years and is highly regarded, had been advised that no funds
were available to continue the research. This situation appeared to make no sense at a time when the
country is more concerned about chemical defense than at any previous time in its history.

Dr. Sheridan replied that funding for medical chemical defense research was down this year compared to
last year and that the overall trend over several years had been flat. In FY2003, the program funded only
intramural projects, and was not able to fund all intramural studies planned. In the current year intramural
projects are competing with extramural, but funds are still very tight because many of last year’s studies
are committed over two years.

LTC Lukey noted that the scientific panels that advise on his programs’ research have all expressed the
judgment that their various areas of research are inadequately funded.

Dr. Golomb commented on the importance of drawing and maintaining whole blood samples before and
after the current deployment in Iraq and future deployments.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 19 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Mr. Robinson asked LTC Lukey if the pre- and post-Gulf War I blood samples from Task Force Riper
could be used for testing. LTC Lukey replied that he would be interested to see what tests are available
and that it is important that the best tests were identified before using scarce stored blood.

Dr. Steele asked why the Department of Defense was no longer funding research on Gulf War Illnesses at
the very time when the research is beginning to provide important insights. It would also seem that Gulf
War veterans are a large group that can be studied to provide important insights in relation to future
deployment and domestic concerns. Dr. Kilpatrick replied that there is some continuation of Gulf War-
related research.

Additional Findings from the VA ALS Studv and Update on the ALS Registry
Dr. Eugene Oddone, MD, MHSc¢
Director, Health Services Research Center, Duke University

Mr. Binns introduced Dr. Eugene Oddone to present additional findings from VA’s ALS Study and to
update the committee on VA’s ALS registry. (See Appendix — Presentation 11.) A discussion followed.

Mr. Binns asked if results of the interviews regarding exposures showed any relationship between
exposures and ALS, noting that there have been at least two anecdotal reports of ill Gulf War veterans
developing ALS after secondary exposures to pesticides. Dr. Oddone replied that Dr. Peter Spencer had
not found any associations of ALS with deployment-related exposures. His analyses did not address
exposures after deployment.

Ms. Knox asked if Dr. Oddone’s team still had the blood samples from the study. Dr. Oddone replied yes.

Mr. Robinson said that veterans calling in to the National Gulf War Resource Center are reporting
multiple cases of multiple sclerosis (MS). Might the ALS Registry also look at MS in the future? Dr.
Oddone reported that his group had also received calls on MS but that there was no one to hand them off
to in the VA system. Mr. Smithson asked if they are maintaining a list of MS patients. Dr. Oddone stated
that they were not documenting MS cases at this time.

Dr. Golomb added that she had also heard of cases of MS among Gulf War veterans. Dr. Steele stated
that there is an online group of Gulf War and other veterans who have MS, but that there were currently
no research efforts focused on the question of MS rates in Gulf War veterans.

Dr. Pellier commented that the ALS study is very important. It provided the first tangible evidence of
neurodegenerative disease in Gulf War veterans. He thinks it would be useful to look at all
neurodegenerative diseases including ALS, MS, and Parkinsons Disease. Dr. Oddone said they could
widen the scope of the effort to include MS and Parkinsons and that such an effort should not triple the
total cost.

Mr. Graves asked if anyone has contacted the Kuwaitis to see if they had been affected by excess rates of
neurodegenerative diseases. Dr. Oddone said they hadn’t, but that it was a good idea. Mr. Graves said
that Kuwait might also be a source of funding for that type of research. Mr. Robinson said that the
Kuwait government had put out a call for researchers to do health studies on Kuwaitis.

Dr. Steele asked if they were also including veterans with ALS who had died in order to construct an
epidemiologic curve. Dr. Oddone said that initial calculations suggested that the epidemiologic curve had
already peaked.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 20 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Dr. Steele asked about cases of neurodegenerative diseases referred to the registry that had ultimately not
been verified as ALS cases, and what had been the types of conditions in this group. Dr. Oddone said that
he could get that information.

Dr. Cherry asked about DNA findings evaluated for the study. Dr. Oddone said he did not have that
information, but it would be included in a future manuscript.

Dr. Haley asked if there has been discussion of a brain bank to archive tissues of patients who had died.
Dr. Oddone said yes, that they had obtained cost estimates on rapid autopsies that had been about $5,000
per patient. He said they would be working with patient groups.

Monitoring the Health of Gulf War Veterans Using Existing VBA Data Systems
Ms. Susan Perez
Asst. Director, Data & Information Services, Office of Performance Analysis & Integrity
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs

Mr. Binns introduced Ms. Susan Perez. She presented information on benefits claims data resources at
the Veterans Benefits Administration (VBA). (See Appendix — Presentation 12.) In particular, she
presented data that had been requested by the Committee concerning: (1) the number of veterans who had
submitted disability claims and had served in the Gulf War, and the number of veterans who had
submitted disability claims who had been in the military during the Gulf War but had not deployed to the
Persian Gulf theater; (2) the demographic and military profiles of the two groups; and (3) the number and
proportion of individuals from the two groups who had submitted claims for three conditions: ALS,
multiple sclerosis, and tinnitus.

Figures reported in response to these data requests were shown in the presentation slides. Although no
statistical analyses were provided, the figures did not indicate that a larger proportion of Gulf War
veterans had submitted disability claims for MS than veterans who had not served in the Gulf War. Ms.
Perez cautioned that this information was not a complete count of MS cases in either group and should
not be over interpreted due to limitations inherent in data relating to disability claims.

A discussion followed. Dr. Steele commended Ms. Perez for her teams’ efforts in preparing the GWVIS
reports and their demonstration of the different types of data available at VBA that might be helpful in
monitoring the health of Gulf War veterans.

Monitoring the Health of Gulf War Veterans Using VHA Data and Information Resources
Dr. Denise Hynes
Director, Information Resource Center, U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs

Mr. Binns introduced Dr. Denise Hynes, who joined the meeting by telephone from Illinois. Dr. Hynes
presented information on the databases and resources available at VA’s Veterans Health Administration
(VHA). (See Appendix — Presentation 13.) Due to technical problems with the teleconference
equipment, Dr. Hynes was unable to hear questions from Committee members, so minimal discussion
occurred following her presentation. Mr. Binns thanked Dr. Hynes for her presentation, and the meeting
adjourned for lunch.




RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 21 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Anthrax Vaccinations and Health Outcomes in the National Survey of Gulf War Veterans
Dr. Claire Mahan
Environmental Epidemiology Service, U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs

Mr. Binns introduced Dr. Claire Mahan, who presented results from VA’s National Survey of Gulf War
veterans including a subgroup of veterans known to have received the anthrax vaccine in association with
Gulf War deployment. (See Appendix — Presentation 14.) A discussion followed.

Dr. Golomb observed that the apparent findings related to self-reported receipt of the anthrax vaccine may
reflect instead those who received multiple vaccinations.

Dr. Cherry asked if they had controlled for confounding factors related to deployment. Dr. Mahan said
they had controlled for a number of confounding factors, and that one important factor was that more than
70% of the subset of veterans with DOD shot records had been in the National Guard.

Dr. Haley noted that the study findings indicated a recall bias and asked if there might be a way to assess
the degree of bias and adjust for it. Dr. Golomb stated that that probably couldn’t be done without having
more information than was available.

Dr. Steele asked for information about who was in the subset of veterans with shot records, and where
those records had come from, since it had generally been assumed that there were no records of who had
received the anthrax vaccine. Dr. Mahan and an audience member from DOD indicated that there were
records available for a few units.

Mr. Robinson noted that this data limitation illustrated the importance of careful monitoring of the health
of current troops after they received vaccines.

Dr. Cherry said she had found similar results in her study of UK veterans. When analyses took into
account other experiences in theater, preliminary associations of symptoms with the anthrax vaccine
disappeared. .

Federal Trials of the Anthrax Vaccine
Dr. Jack Melling
Director, Karl Landsteiner Institute, Vienna

Mr. Binns introduced Dr. Jack Melling, consultant to the committee, to present an update on federal trials
of the anthrax vaccine. (See Appendix — Presentation 15.) A discussion followed.

Dr. Melling noted that studies of newer types of anthrax vaccines being studied often include a
comparison group that receives anthrax vaccine adsorbed (AVA), the type of vaccine currently used by
the military. Long-term evaluation of symptoms reported by participants in this arm of vaccine trials
could provide the type of information the Committee thinks should be collected with respect to whether
AVA is associated with long-term adverse effects.

In the discussion that followed Dr. Melling’s presentation, Mr. Robinson said that the U.S. Senate has
passed a Sense of Senate resolution to stop the current vaccination program. Lawsuits are pending.

Dr. Steele asked Dr. Melling to explain the difference between AVA and the newer recombinant
protective antigen (rPA) vaccines being developed. Dr. Melling replied that AVA is a 1950°s vaccine.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 22 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

The organism is grown and filtered, and the protective antigen (PA) is isolated for use in the vaccine. The
process results in a lower purity of PA, with the specific amount varying from batch to batch. The newer
rPA vaccines use the gene that codes for the anthrax antigen and puts it into another organism. This
process provides a higher purity and better control of antigen levels.

Mr. Robinson said that his understanding for the current deployment was that some blood samples were
taken prior to the shots being given and that samples will be collected again at a later time. He believed
that the Army was doing a limited surveillance for the vaccine’s effects and he understood this was being
done at Walter Reed.

Dr. Melling said that the relevant parts of the new vaccine studies being planned had not been designed
yet, and it might be possible for the Committee to find out more about the details and to make specific
suggestions with respect to follow-up.

Mr. Robinson observed that the current vaccine is a different vaccine from the one used in Gulf War 1.

Dr. Golomb agreed, but said that if studies of the newer vaccine showed a problem, it had some
relevance.

Committee Business

Mr. Binns stated that the next topic for consideration was committee business. Dr. Steele presented a
proposed plan of work for the committee and staff over the coming year. (See Appendix — Presentation
16.) Committee members expressed approval of the plan and provided comments on various aspects of
committee activities.

Dr. Golomb said that the topics chosen for meetings and speakers should include areas related to our
hypotheses relating to the causes and pathophysiology of Gulf War illnesses.

Mr. Robinson emphasized that treatments were an important area to consider on an ongoing basis.

Mr. Graves asked what funding the committee had. Mr. Binns replied that the committee’s own budget
remained at $400,000.

Dr. Melling suggested that speakers could be invited to make written submissions in advance of the
meeting which could be posted to the website.

Dr. Steele suggested that the agenda might include public comments on only one day of each meeting,
and invite members of the public who provide comments to submit them in writing for the permanent
record.

Mr. Smithson asked about the visibility of the website and whether we could keep track of visits? Dr.
Steele replied that she had asked VA to do this, and they were working on it.

Dr. Steele raised the subject of the degree to which the committee should consider issues arising out of
the current Iraq deployment. Dr. Golomb said that the committee should stay focused on Gulf War I and
that evaluating issues related to the current deployment could dilute the Committee’s efforts. The purpose
for which the Committee had been established was the illnesses affecting Gulf War I veterans. Dr. Haley
said Gulf War I has never ended for those ill veterans and that there may not be much we can do for Gulf



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 23 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

War 1II veterans at this point in time. Dr. Cherry said that we can keep informed of issues relating to the
current war, but may not feel qualified to make recommendations.

Mr. Robinson noted that there are 600 soldiers currently at Fort Stewart with health problems from
Afghanistan and Iraq and that the Committee could make recommendations based on lessons learned. Dr.
Golomb agreed. Mr. Robinson said the U.S. Senate would be holding hearings on this issue and that
others would be working on it as well. Given the considerable experience of some of the Committee
members, it might be possible to make some simple recommendations related to things that should be
done in relation to the current deployments. Veterans expect the Committee to provide information that
helps 1991 Gulf War veterans and also helps make sure that the types of problems they have experienced
do not happen again.

The consensus of the discussion was that the Committee would write a letter to Secretary Principi
updating an earlier letter regarding lessons learned. Mr. Robinson indicated he would provide the first
draft for Committee consideration.

Ms. Knox asked if there are samples of the anthrax vaccine used during the first Gulf War. Mr.
Robinson’s understanding was that no samples had been saved.

Mr. Robinson said he is interested in choline as a prospective treatment. Dr. Golomb agreed.

Dr. Melling saw a need to provide current information to VA clinicians that might serve to “reprogram”
them away from focusing so much on psychiatric explanations and treatments for Gulf War illnesses. Dr.
Steele said this could be a topic for a future meeting.

Mr. Graves said information relating to oil well fires should be considered. For Gulf War veterans
located in the middle of the oil well fires, it was like living in a fishbowl of oil rain.

Mr. Robinson said that sand also may have been a factor, and that it could have acted as a carrier for some
of the other exposures of concern such as pesticides, infections, and depleted uranium.

There was applause following the discussion of the proposed topics to be addressed at 2004 meetings.
The discussion then turned to communications maintained by the Committee. Dr. Steele described
summaries of recently-published research and other matters of interest relating to Gulf War illnesses that
would be provided to Committee members on a regular basis. Dr. Meggs said that members should
continue to chat back and forth by email about emerging research information. Dr. Steele agreed that
organized reports should not block the free flow of information. Ms. Knox asked if this information
might also be provided to veterans. Dr. Steele indicated it could be put on the Committee’s website.

Dr. Cherry said that the upcoming report to the Secretary should include a focus on treatments. It also
should reinforce the need to use and merge existing databases. Ms. Knox asked about the types of links
needed between different data sources. Dr. Steele noted that to the best of her knowledge, the
presentations made earlier in the day were the first opportunity for VBA to learn about databases
available at VHA.

Mr. Robinson said that the Senate and House Armed Services and Veterans Committees should receive
testimony on the Committee’s report. That may be the best way to launch it. The Secretary could request
a hearing with those committees.



RAC-GWVI Meeting Minutes
Page 24 of 116
October 27-28, 2003

Dr. Golomb asked about the possibility of publishing a position paper in a medical journal. Dr. Steele
noted that the PAC and NIH committees had published articles relevant to their major findings.

Mr. Robinson suggested seeking a Sense of Congress resolution.

Dr. Cherry said that an article in Military Medicine might be a good idea. A short piece would do, or a
letter to the editor. Dr. Golomb said that one of the major journals is another option.

Public Comment — Day 2

Venus-val Hammack said that the publication U.S. Medicine is also commonly read by VA doctors.
Regarding treatments and education through VA, Mark Brown had produced a guide for physicians on
Gulf War illnesses, but half of the Persian Gulf coordinators at VA facilities do not have copies. She
suggested that the Committee look at this guide, which is at least three years old.

Alison Johnson said a recent article in Sociology had some chilling information. Soldiers who applied to
sick call were assigned to unpleasant duty. She offered her video and book for VA training and indicated
they had been well received. She offered to make a master copy available for anyone to copy for free or
to sell copies for $3.00. She is trying to raise $2,500 for insurance so PBS local stations can show the
video.

Denise Nichols commented that the Committee had done some great work. However, the holiday season
was coming up and the journals have had some discouraging reports. She wondered if the Committee
could do an update, even on a website, of encouraging news such as the partial results from Israel?
Suicides increase at the holiday season. Dr. Golomb asked if veterans put the word out to other veterans.
Ms. Nichols said that there is a need to get the word out to VA clinicians, perhaps through
teleconferencing. She said that VA should start turning things around for the veterans and that although
the Committee had done good work with hard research and she was thrilled that treatments would be
addressed, it was important to find a way to make a difference a little quicker for sick veterans. Ms.
Nichols said that “where the pedal hits the metal” out there at VA hospitals, they still don’t get it. They
think Gulf War illness is psychological and refer ill veterans to psychiatrists. Ms. Knox observed that she
had a good point.

Mr. Robinson noted that the Committee has no presence in any VA publication. Dr. Steele said that
information on the Committee had been published in VA’s Persian Gulf Review.

Dr. Cherry said that inviting written public comments was a good idea.

Mr. Robinson advised the Committee that the annual National Gulf War Resource Center conference
would be held April 30, May 1, and 2, 2004 in Washington, DC. The conference would include a tour of
the WRIISC Center and the clinical center at Walter Reed.

The meeting adjourned at approximately 4:00 p.m.



